
 

REGULAR MEETING 

June 27, 2022 
10:00 AM 

 
Albany-Dougherty Government Center 
222 Pine Ave, Room 100, Albany, GA 31701 

 

 
AGENDA 

To comply with the request set forth by the Chairman of Dougherty County, GA and the 
guidelines of the Center for Disease Control (CDC) regarding the Coronavirus (COVID19) 
pandemic and social distancing, face coverings (masks) are optional for all meeting participants. 

 

The public will also have access to the live meeting by accessing the Dougherty County Georgia 
Government Facebook page at facebook.com/Dougherty.ga.us or viewing the public 
government access channel (Channel 16). 

1. Call the meeting to order by Chairman Christopher Cohilas. 

2. Roll Call. 

3. Invocation. 

4. Pledge of Allegiance. 

5. Minutes. 

a. Consider for action the Minutes of the May 16th Regular Meeting, May 23rd Work 
Session and May 23rd Special Called Meeting.  ACTION: 

6. Delegations (The Commission will hear comments on those items pertaining to Dougherty 
County for which a public hearing has not been held or scheduled. Please be brief, to the 
point, and considerate of time for others). 

7. Zoning-Public Hearing.  (Those wishing to speak on these matters should print their 
name on the Sign Up Sheet in the rear of the Chamber prior to the start of the 
meeting). 

a. Emily McAfee, Jean Haley & et. al. Laura Creel Haley & Lee Haley Jones c/o  
Larry Walden, Albany, GA, owner and Oxford Construction Company, J. Bruce Melton, 
applicant, (22-025) request Special Approval to operate a surface mine borrow pit on 
69.342 acres.  The property is located on Fleming Road parcel 
#(00158/00001/79A).  The property is zoned AG (Agricultural).  The Planning 
Commission recommends denial.  Angel Gray, Planning Manager, will address. 

1



b. Jessica Fields, owner and applicant (22-026) requests to rezone 106.639 acres from 
R-1 (Single Family Residential District) to AG (Agricultural District).  The property is 
located at 5913 Old Dawson Road.  The Planning Commission recommends approval 
with the following conditions:  1.  commercial agricultural operations are not permitted, 
2. a 100’ buffer from all property lines must be maintained, and 3. Non-Commercial 
Farming Activities are not allowed within the 100’ buffer.  Angel Gray, Planning 
Manager, will address.   

8. Purchases. 

a. Consider for action the Resolution providing for the acceptance and execution of the 
bid for Facilities Management for the Interior Painting of the Dougherty County Police 
Department from the lowest responsive and responsible bidder meeting 
specifications, Empire Painting, LLC (Sylvester, GA) in the amount of $28,625 subject 
to execution by the County Administrator.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST 
VII.  ACTION: 

b. Consider for action the recommendation to accept the bid for Public Works for one (1) 
Compact Excavator with Cab and one (1) trailer from the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder meeting specifications, Flint Equipment (Albany, GA) in the amount 
of $64,850.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  ACTION: 

9. Additional Business. 

a. Consider for action the Resolution providing for acceptance and execution of the 
Amendment to Service Agreement with Cornerstone Government Affairs, Inc. by the 
County Administrator providing for strategic consulting and advocacy services on 
behalf of Dougherty County, GA.  County Administrator Michael McCoy will 
address.    ACTION: 

b. Consider for approval a Joint Ordinance and Resolution between the City of Albany 
and Dougherty County providing for an Amendment to Section 2-477(b)(3) of Article 
IV, Division 8 of Chapter 2 of the City Code of  Albany, Georgia providing for 
housekeeping changes relative to penalties as provided in the Code Section.   Director 
of Planning and Development Paul Forgey will address.  ACTION: 

c. Consider for action the Zoning Consideration of Emily McAfee, Jean Haley & et. al. 
Laura Creel Haley & Lee Haley Jones c/o Larry Walden, Albany, GA, owner and 
Oxford Construction Company, J. Bruce Melton, applicant, (22-025) request for 
Special Approval to operate a surface mine borrow pit on 69.342 acres.  The property 
is located on Fleming Road parcel #(00158/00001/79A).  The property is zoned AG 
(Agricultural).  The Planning Commission recommends denial.  ACTION: 

d. Consider for action the Zoning Consideration of Jessica Fields, owner and applicant 
(22-026) requests to rezone 106.639 acres from R-1 (Single Family Residential 
District) to AG (Agricultural District).  The property is located at 5913 Old Dawson 
Road.  The Planning Commission recommends approval with the following 
conditions:  1.  commercial agricultural operations are not permitted, 2. a 100’ buffer 
from all property lines must be maintained, and 3. Non-Commercial Farming Activities 
are not allowed within the 100’ buffer.  ACTION: 

e. Discussion of SPLOST VIII. County Administrator Michael McCoy will address. 

2



f. Consider for action the approval of an option from the proposed compensation and 
classification study. County Administrator Michael McCoy, HR Director Dominique Hall 
and President of Management Advisory Group International Inc Dr. Donald Long will 
address. ACTION: 

g. Consider for action the approval of a Resolution for the purpose of amending 
Dougherty County's contract with Chief Johnson. County Administrator  
Michael McCoy will address. ACTION: 

h. Proposed FY 2023 budget items by Commissioner Edwards.  

i. Continued presentation and review of the proposed FY 2023 Budgets as 
recommended by the Finance Committee.  County Administrator Michael McCoy, 
Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison and Finance Director Martha Hendley 
will address. 

j. Consider for action the proposed FY 2022-2023 Budget.  County Administrator 
Michael McCoy,  Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison and Finance Director 
Martha Hendley will address.  ACTION: 

10. Board Appointments. 

a. Deputy County Clerk Bristeria Hope will address. Please see the information below. 

Albany Dougherty Land Bank Authority – One(1) County appointment with a two-
year term ending July 31, 2024. County Administrator Michael McCoy recommends 
applicant Jim McBride.   

11. Updates from the County Administrator. 

a. REMINDER - Due to the observance of the Fourth of July Holiday, there will be no 
meeting on July 4, 2022.  The next meeting will be a Regular Meeting on Monday,  
July 11, 2022. 

12. Updates from the County Attorney. 

13. Updates from the County Commission. 

14. Adjourn. 

 

 

 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of 
the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Coordinator at 229-431-2121 
promptly to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

3



 

 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

May 16, 2022 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty 

Government Center on May 16, 2022.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called 

the meeting to order at 10 a.m.  Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines,  

Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones, and Ed Newsome.  Also present were County 

Administrator Michael McCoy, Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, County 

Attorney Spencer Lee, County Clerk Jawahn Ware, and other staff.  Commissioner Russell 

Gray participated via the audio-conferencing feature.  The public and representatives of the 

media participated in person and via live streaming of the meeting on the County’s Facebook 

page and the government public access channel.   

 

After the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance, the Chairman called for approval of the 

minutes for the April 18th Regular Meeting and April 25th Work Session. 

 

Commissioner Newsome moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Jones, the 

minutes were unanimously approved. 

 

The Chairman recognized Public Works Director Chuck Mathis to accept the proclamation 

recognizing May 15-21, 2022 as Public Works Week in Dougherty County.  The 

proclamation reads as follows: 

 

National Public Works Week Proclamation 

May 15 – 21, 2022 

“Ready and Resilient” 

WHEREAS, public works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities and services 

that are of vital importance to sustainable and resilient communities and to the public 

health, high quality of life and well-being of the people of Dougherty County, Albany, 

GA; and, 

WHEREAS, these infrastructure, facilities and services could not be provided without 

the dedicated efforts of public works professionals, who are engineers, managers, and 

employees at all levels of government and the private sector, who are responsible for 

4

Item 5a.



 

 

rebuilding, improving, and protecting our nation’s transportation, water supply, water 

treatment and solid waste systems, public buildings, and other structures and facilities 

essential for our citizens; and, 

WHEREAS it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders, and children in 

Dougherty County, Albany, GA to gain knowledge of and to maintain ongoing interest 

and understanding of the importance of public works and public works programs in 

their respective communities; and, 

WHEREAS, the year 2022 marks the 62nd annual National Public Works Week 

sponsored by the American Public Works Association be it now, 

RESOLVED, I, Christopher S. Cohilas, Commission Chair, do hereby designate the 

week  

May 15 – 21, 2022 as National Public Works Week; I urge all citizens to join with 

representatives of the American Public Works Association and government agencies in 

activities, events and ceremonies designed to pay tribute to our public works 

professionals, engineers, managers, and employees and to recognize the substantial 

contributions they make to protecting our national health, safety, and quality of life. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the State 

(to be affixed), 

DONE at the Dougherty County, Albany, Georgia this 15th day of May 2022. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

       BY: __________________________ 

               Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman
  

 

The Chairman recognized EMS Director Sam Allen to update the Commission with their 

annual report and accept the Proclamation recognizing May 15-21, 2022 as Emergency 

Management Services Week in Dougherty County.  Mr. Allen highlighted that there was a 

call volume of 23,952 and base [billing] rates are the same.  He added that an average 

response time is about 5 minutes and 44 seconds.  He shared that the pay raises received 

have helped with retention and EMS is very active with opioid responses.  There were a total 

of 2,632 vaccinations administered which peaked at about 205 people per hour by the 3rd 

event.  The proclamation reads as follows: 

5

Item 5a.



 

 

 

WHEREAS,  emergency medical services are a vital public service; and 

 

WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams are ready to provide 

lifesaving care to those in need 24 hours a day, seven days a week, and 

 

WHEREAS, access to quality emergency care dramatically improves the survival and  

recovery rate of those who experience sudden illness or injury; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the emergency medical care dramatically improves the survival and recovery 

rate of those who experience sudden illness or injury; and 

 

WHEREAS, the emergency medical services system consists of emergency physicians, 

emergency nurses, emergency medical technicians, paramedics, firefighters, educators, 

administrators and others; and 

 

WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams, whether career or 

volunteer, engage in thousands of hours of specialized training and continuing education to 

enhance their lifesaving skills; and 

 

WHEREAS,  it is appropriate to recognize the value and the accomplishments of 

emergency medical services providers by designating Emergency Medical  Services Week; 

now 

 

THEREFORE, we, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia in 

recognition of this event does hereby proclaim the week of May 15-22, 2022 as 

 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES WEEK 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the Great 

Seal of the County of Dougherty on this 16th day of May in the year of our Lord two-

thousand and twenty-two. 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 

 

The Chairman recognized William Wright, a representative for AFRAM Tech, Inc. to 

continue discussing the request to recognize/commemorate the "157th Anniversary of the 

6

Item 5a.



 

 

Juneteenth Holiday" with their "New Deal."  He discussed having an oversight committee 

to review money that the County received to ensure funds are dispensed with equity. 

 

Commissioner Gray left the meeting.  

 

The Chairman recognized Henry Thomas CEO of the Georgia Music Association to invite 

the Commission to his upcoming community events.  Commissioner Johnson directed him 

to the Georgia Arts Council to possibly receive funds.  Mr. Thomas requested a meeting with 

Commissioner Johnson and Chairman Cohilas and wanted his Commissioner [Gaines] to 

follow up with him. 

 

The Chairman called for recess from 11:13 am to 11:18 am.  Upon returning, the Chairman 

said that we will reestablish decorum regarding how the Board will be addressed and how 

the Board will address citizens. 

 

The Chairman opened the public hearings for both Zoning Considerations 22-021 and 22-

022 pertaining to the Fish House Campgrounds, Inc. 

 

The first for Fish House Campgrounds, Inc., owner and Lanier Engineering (22-021), 

applicant, request is to rezone 73.261 acres from C-2 (General Mixed-Used District) and C-

7 (Mixed Use Planned-Development District) to C-1 (Neighborhood Mixed-Use Business 

District). The property is located at 2908 Gillionville Road.  The Planning Commission 

recommended approval.  Angel Gray, Planning Manager, addressed. 

 

The second for Fish House Campgrounds, Inc, owner and Lanier Engineering, Inc., applicant 

(22-022) request is for Special Approval to operate a Women's Recovery Center in a C-1 

(Neighborhood Mixed-Use Business District). The parcel is a 73.261 acre developed parcel. 

The property is located at 2908 Gillionville Road. The Planning Commission recommended 

approval.  Angel Gray, Planning Manager, addressed.  Due to law statutes, the Public Hearing 

will be held only; action will be scheduled in the Fall.  Mr. Bob Lynch, Director for “The 

Anchorage”, Bobby Donley, Lanier Engineer and Mr. Barrow all spoke in favor of the 

requests and the need for a Women’s Facility.  Anchorage Board members were also present.  

There being no additional comments regarding the proposed matters, the Chairman closed 

the public hearings. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to purchase 400 sign posts and anchors for the Public 

Works Department from Big Green Sign Company (Dublin, GA) in the amount of $29,440.  

Funding is available in TSPLOST.   

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.   

7

Item 5a.



 

 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to purchase forty body-worn cameras and the 

supporting cloud storage software from single source vendor Motorola Solutions (Allen, TX) 

in the amount of $253,760.  Funding is available in the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the approval and 

execution of the contract to accept the proposal for ARPA Grant Administration and 

Management Services for Dougherty County from Government Services Group (GSG – 

Tallahassee, Florida) in a not to exceed amount of $350,000 subject to execution by the 

County Administrator.  Funding is available in ARPA funds.   

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Commissioner Edwards seconded the motion. 

Under discussion, Commissioner Edwards asked for a start date and Mr. Addison shared that 

it will be after the contract process is complete.  There being no further discussion, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 22-026 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND 

EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR ARPA GRANT 

ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY WITH GOVERNMENT SERVICES 

GROUP (GSG-TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA) IN AN AMOUNT NOT 

TO EXCEED $350,000; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS 

OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to approve the alcohol application from Sandhu Bro 

LLC., Faisal Ijaz licensee, dba Pace Car Express, at 3503 Sylvester Hwy for Package- Beer 

and Wine.  The Albany-Dougherty Marshal’s Office recommended approval.   

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to accept the proposed amendment to the Dougherty 

County American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Project Spending Plan for Fiscal Year 2022.  The 

budget amount of $8,454,000 will remain the same. 

 

8

Item 5a.



 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for the zoning consideration of Fish House Campgrounds, Inc., owner 

and Lanier Engineering (22-021), applicant, request to rezone 73.261 acres from C-2 

(General Mixed-Used District) and C-7 (Mixed Use Planned-Development District) to C-1 

(Neighborhood Mixed-Use Business District). The property is located at 2908 Gillionville 

Road. The Planning Commission recommended approval.   

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Commissioner Newsome seconded the motion.  

Under discussion, Commissioner Gaines asked for clarification regarding the process for the 

special approval and Ms. Gray addressed.  There being no further discussion, the motion for 

approval passed unanimously.  The zoning resolution is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE A 

LOCATION WITHIN UNINCORPORATED AREA OF 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia, and IT 

IS HEREBY RESOLVED by authority of same: 

 

SECTION I:  That from and after the passage of this Resolution, the official Zoning 

Regulations and Map of the unincorporated area of Dougherty County, adopted December 1, 

1969, as amended, be, and the same are hereinafter described as follows: 

 

CHANGE FROM:  C-7 (Mixed-Use Planned Development  

District) and C-2 (General Mixed-Use Business 

District) Meeting Place for Church Groups 

 

TO:    C-1 (Neighborhood Mixed-Use Business District) 

 

OWNER/APPLICANT: Fish House Campgrounds Inc 

 

LOCATION:   2908 Gillionville Road 

 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying in and being part of Land Lot 82 of the Second 

Land District, Dougherty County, Georgia and being more particularly described as follows: 

 

9

Item 5a.



 

 

Commence at the northwest end of the miter at the intersection of the west right-of-way of 

Westover Road (15’ r/w) and the south right-of-way of Gillionville Road(100’r/w) and go 

South 87 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds West along the south right-of-way of Gillionville 

Road a distance of 1758.35 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 

From this Point of Beginning, leaving said right-of-way line, go South 02 degrees  

19 minutes 04 seconds East a distance of 3.46 feet; go thence along the arc of a curve concave 

to the northeast a distance of 176. 29 feet, having a radius of 186.19 feet, a chord bearing of 

South 29 degrees 26 minutes 32 seconds East and a chord distance of 169.78 feet; go thence 

South 56 degrees 34 minutes 04 seconds East a distance of 1432.99 feet; go thence South 18 

degrees 05 minutes 04 seconds East a distance of 215.72 feet; go thence along the arc of a 

curve concave to the southwest a distance of 199.28 feet, having a radius of 522.96 feet, a 

chord bearing of South 07 degrees 10 minutes 04 seconds East and a chord distance of 198.08 

feet; go thence South 03 degrees 44 minutes 56 seconds West a distance of 1274.84 feet; go 

thence North 86 degrees 18 minutes 04 seconds West a distance of 400.00 feet; go thence 

South 75 degrees 05 minutes 10 seconds West a distance of 480.00 feet; go thence North 01 

degree 03 minutes 58 seconds West a distance of 779.83 feet; go thence North 00 degrees 17 

minutes 13 seconds West a distance of 1587.11 feet to the south right-of-way of Gillionville 

Road; go thence North 87 degrees 40 minutes 56 seconds East along the south right-of-way 

of Gillionville Road a distance of 145.34 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 

Said tract or parcel contains 73.261 acres.  

 

SECTION II: That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith be and the same 

hereby are repealed.  

 

       _______________________________ 

       CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

CLERK 

 

APPROVED: May 16, 2022 

 

Mr. McCoy reminded the Board the that Dougherty County Police Department will be 

hosting the Fallen Officers Memorial Ceremony at 1 pm at the Albany Technical College 

Kirkland Conference Center. 

 

10

Item 5a.



 

 

Commissioner Edwards shared that he expected the discussion regarding funding for 

Juneteenth to be on the agenda.  He also said that he did get the opinion from the Attorney 

for the request.  Chairman Cohilas shared he will speak to the County Administrator and 

would like to volunteer his time to help find private dollars.  Mr. McCoy shared that the ask 

was for in-kind donations.  Commissioner Johnson wanted the County to provide $2500 from 

either the community component of ARPA or the enterprise fund.  After discussion, 

Chairman Cohilas shared that it will be on the next Work Session and added that his concern 

was if an organization would come that stands for a lesser cause and represent hate, etc 

[would funding be provided].  He also wanted to ensure that we have considered all options 

and ensure that measures are in place that can solve this problem.  Commissioner Edwards 

wanted an added section from the County Clerk to have community events added to the 

agenda.  Commissioner Jones asked for a moment of silence for those impacted by the recent 

mass shooting in Boston.  He also wanted a follow-up from Marshal Norman in reference to 

the litter and a statement made by the Mayor regarding possible purchases by the City and 

County for land.  He ended with wanting an update on the discussion regarding Putney Park 

and Commissioner Johnson responded to both.  Chairman Cohilas asked about removing the 

safety partitions in Room 100 and there were mixed responses received from the Board. 

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at  

12:05 p.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

11

Item 5a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

 

May 23, 2022 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on May 23, 2022.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to 

order at 10:00 am.  Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Russell Gray,  

Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones and Ed Newsome.  Commissioner Gloria Gaines participated 

via the audio-conferencing feature.  County Administrator Michael McCoy, Assistant County 

Administrator Scott Addison, County Clerk Jawahn Ware and other staff were also present.  

The public and representatives of the media participated in person via live streaming of the 

meeting on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel.  County 

Attorney Spencer Lee was absent. 

 

The Chairman asked the Commission to review the minutes of the May 2nd Regular Meeting 

and May 9th Work Session. 

 

The Chairman recognized Coroner Michael Fowler who asked for financial support for his 

annual Swim for Life Program.  This is the first time the Board has been asked for support 

financially.  Upon question by Commissioner Edwards, Mr. Fowler shared that the City is 

sponsoring bounce houses at the registration event.  The Chairman plans to privately support 

but asked the Coroner to meet with County Administrator McCoy to determine how the Board 

can assist.  Commissioner Jones shared that he will sponsor two students. 

 

The Chairman recognized citizen Harry Thomas to update the Commission on upcoming 

events.  He stated that he has met with Commissioner Gaines but is still awaiting the Board’s 

response to the presentation he made in 2019. 

 

The Chairman recognized Public Works Director Chuck Mathis to provide an update on Putney 

Park.  Mr. Mathis shared that most of the improvements have been completed.  Upon question 

by the Chairman, Jermey Brown updated the Board on the denial of grants, noting additional 

information will be obtained by Planning and Development who submitted the packet on the 

County’s behalf.  The Chairman requested that the conceptual drawings be submitted to our 

government liaison's Cornerstone to determine what additional grants and opportunities are 

available.  Commissioner Johnson would like to provide the information to Mr. Addison that 

he and Commissioner Edwards received from a recent recreation class.  Commissioner Jones 

asked that funding be added in SPLOST VIII to allow Putney Park to mirror Radium Springs 

Park to include a safe room, meeting space, and asphalt walkways.  Recreation Subcommittee 

Chairman Clinton Johnson shared that Putney Park is a priority of the subcommittee and 

funding has been requested in SPLOST VIII. 

 

The Chairman recognized Sheriff's Office Captain Ted Thomas to request funding for the 

Albany Dougherty Youth Unit Summer Program.  It was shared that the program will be five 

weeks and it will be educationally based to bridge the gap between the community, students 

12

Item 5a.



and law enforcement.  The dates will be May 31-July 15 at Merry Acres Middle School.  Meals 

and snacks will be provided and field trips are planned.  The operational expense is $11,115.  

Mr. McCoy shared that staff has proposed funding the program as they did last year and it will 

be presented during a presentation on June 6th.  Other Sheriff’s Office representatives that will 

be supporting the program were introduced. 

 

Mr. McCoy changed participation to the audio feature at 10:30 a.m. 

 

The Chairman recognized William Wright, representative for AFRAM Tech, Inc. present to 

continue his update to the Commission.  Mr. Wright would like to provide workshops in June 

and will give additional information at the June 6th meeting. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to purchase two chillers for the Dougherty Mental Health 

Facility in the amount of $310,366 from SafeAire Heating & Cooling (Albany, Ga).  The two 

120-ton chillers are replacements and funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  Assistant County 

Administrator Scott Addison addressed.  Facilities Management Director Heidi Minnick was 

present.  Action on this item is scheduled in the following Special Called Meeting.  Mr. Addison 

said that this was time-sensitive and one manufacturer increased the quote by 18% during the 

time the quote was received to the time it was presented to the Board.  He recommended 

approval before another increase occurs. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to purchase one 2022 Ford Escape for the Sheriff's Office 

from Wade Ford (Smyrna, GA) in the amount of $28,163.34.  Four vendors submitted bids with 

the highest being $49,043.  Two bids would require order submission prior to board approval.  

Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison 

addressed.  City of Albany Interim Procurement Manager Joshua Williams, Buyer Corey 

Gamble and Deputy Chief Terron Hayes were present.  Action on this item is scheduled in the 

following Special Called Meeting.  Mr. Addison said that two vendors required commitment 

prior to the presentation to the Board. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to declare the listed vehicles as surplus and authorizing 

the disposal of or sale of same via an online auction.  Assistant County Administrator  

Scott Addison addressed. Action on this item is scheduled in the following Special Called 

Meeting.   

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to accept the resolution declaring a 2017 Nissan 

Pathfinder (from the Solid Waste Department) as surplus and authorize the sale through 

Underwriters Safety & Claims.  Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison addressed.  

Action on this item is scheduled in the following Special Called Meeting.  Mr. Addison shared 

that the vehicle was involved in a fire and was totaled. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the request from Lanier Engineering, Inc., consultant 

for JFT Public Properties (Developer), for Dougherty County to ask the City of Albany to 

authorize the developer, at his expense, to extend City sanitary sewer into the unincorporated 

area of Dougherty County.  The project site is located at 2005 Beattie Road.  Jeremy Brown, 

Engineering Manager addressed.  Representatives from Lanier Engineering were present. 

13

Item 5a.



Action on this item is scheduled in the following Special Called Meeting.  Mr. Brown shared 

that the request was for the city sewer services to be in the subdivision.  The process is for the 

County to request that the City follows their code to complete the request. 

 

Commissioner Edwards asked about minority participation in bids and awards and questioned 

if a subcommittee could meet with Mr. Wright.  Commissioner Gray and Chairman Cohilas 

addressed.  Chairman Cohilas also expressed his opinion by stating that his desire is for 

economic development opportunities to be provided to all in our community despite the color 

of their skin.  However, he is willing to continue the discussion.  Commissioner Edwards 

supported the Chairman’s comments and stated that it is about employment overall.  

Commissioner Jones questioned what more could procurement do because recruiting efforts 

have been provided to all including minorities.  Commissioner Gray shared that there is not a 

problem with businesses in our community.  He added that many small businesses are busy and 

stressed that it is a lot of red tape dealing with the government and many individuals do not 

want to go through the process.  If we continue to focus on local businesses, we are supporting 

our [local] job base.  

 

There being no further business to discuss the Commission entered into a Special Called 

Meeting at 11:06 a.m. 

 
 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

14

Item 5a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES 

 

May 23, 2022 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met for a Special Called Meeting in Room 100 of the 

Albany-Dougherty Government Center on May 23, 2022 immediately after the Work Session.  

Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to order at 11:07 am.  Present 

were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Russell Gray, Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones and  

Ed Newsome.  County Administrator Michael McCoy and Commissioner Gloria Gaines 

participated via the audio-conferencing feature.  Also present were Assistant County 

Administrator Scott Addison, County Clerk Jawahn Ware and other staff.  The public and 

representatives of the media participated in person via live streaming of the meeting on the 

County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel.  County Attorney 

Spencer Lee was absent. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation to purchase two chillers for the 

Dougherty County Mental Health Facility in the amount of $310,366 from SafeAire Heating 

& Cooling (Albany, Ga).  The two 120-ton chillers are replacements and funding is budgeted 

in SPLOST VII.   

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation to purchase one 2022 Ford 

Escape for the Sheriff's Office from Wade Ford (Smyrna, GA) in the amount of $28,163.34.  

Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution declaring the listed vehicles as surplus 

and authorizing the disposal of or sale of same via an online auction.  

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion passed unanimously.  Resolution 22-027 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING AS SURPLUS THE 

ATTACHED LIST OF VEHICLES; 

PROVIDING FOR DISPOSAL OF OR SALE OF SAME ON 

AN ONLINE AUCTION; REPEALING PRIOR RESOLUTIONS 

IN CONFLICT; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

15

Item 5a.



The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution declaring a 2017 Nissan Pathfinder 

(from Solid Waste) as surplus and authorizing the sale through Underwriters Safety & Claims. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Gray, the motion 

passed unanimously.  Resolution 22-028 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION TO DECLARE AS SURPLUS A SALVAGED 2017 

NISSAN PATHFINDER 

(VIN NO.  5N1DR2MM1HC630048) AND HAVE SAID SURPLUSED 

SALVAGED VEHICLE DISPOSED OF THROUGH UNDERWRITERS 

SAFETY AND CLAIMS, DOUGHERTY COUNTY’S THIRD PARTY 

ADMINISTRATOR; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF 

RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the request from Lanier Engineering, Inc., consultant 

for JFT Public Properties (Developer), for Dougherty County to ask the City of Albany to 

authorize the developer, at his expense, to extend City sanitary sewer into the unincorporated 

area of Dougherty County.  The project site is located at 2005 Beattie Road. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

motion passed unanimously.   

 

Commissioner Johnson requested to ask Mr. McCoy about the County’s plan for Juneteenth.  

Mr. McCoy said that if instructed, a program can be planned for Saturday, June 18th and the 

Chairman stated that there was a consensus provided by the Board. 

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at 

11:11 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

16

Item 5a.



A RESOLUTION 
ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A BID FROM EMPIRE PAINTING LLC IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $28,625.00 FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAINTING THE INTERIOR OF THE DOUGHERTY 

COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT; AND FOR THE PURPOSE OF AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO SIGN ANY AND ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY FOR FULL 

IMPLEMENTATION OF SAID PROJECT; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS 
IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia, is hereby desirous 
of approving a bid from Empire Painting LLC in the amount of $28,625.00 for the purpose of 
painting the interior of the Dougherty County Police Department; and for the purpose of 
authorizing the county Administrator to sign any and all documents necessary for full 
implementation of said project. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I    The attached Bid Proposal from Empire Painting, LLC in the amount of 
$28,625.00 for the purpose of painting the interior of the Dougherty County Police Department 
is hereby approved and the County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any and all 
documents necessary  for full implementation of said project. 
 
 SECTION II   All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 This the 27th day of June, 2022. 
 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
       BY:___________________________ 
            Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
County Clerk 
 

 

 

17

Item 8a.



18

Item 8a.



19

Item 8a.



20

Item 8b.



21

Item 8b.



A RESOLUTION 
ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF AMENDMENT II TO THAT 
CERTAIN SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA AND 

CORNERSTONE GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS, INC.; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF 
RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia is desirous of 
approving and executing an Amendment II to that certain Service Agreement between Dougherty 
County, Georgia and Cornerstone Government Affairs, Inc.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I    The attached Amendment II to Service Agreement previously executed 
between Dougherty County, Georgia and Cornerstone Government Affairs, Inc. is hereby 
approved and the County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute same.  The County 
Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any and all other documents necessary for full 
implementation of Amendment II to our previously executed Service Agreement. 
 
 SECTION II   All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 This the 27th day of June, 2022. 
 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
       BY:___________________________ 
            Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
County Clerk 

 

 

22

Item 9a.



AMENDMENT  I I  TO  SERVICE  AGREEMENT 
 
 This Amendment (the “Amendment II”), effective as of June 1, 2022 is made by and between 

Dougherty County Commission (hereinafter referred to as “DCC”), with offices at 222 Pine Avenue, Suite 

540, Albany, GA 31701 and Cornerstone Government Affairs, Inc (hereafter referred to as “Cornerstone”), 

a sub-chapter S corporation duly organized under the laws of the District of Columbia, with its principal 

place of business at 800 Maine Avenue SW, 7th Floor, Washington, D.C. 20024. 

 

 WHEREAS, DCC and Cornerstone are Parties to Service Agreement with an effective date of June 

1, 2018 (the “Agreement”); and an amendment with an effective date of June 1, 2020 (“Amendment I”);  

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Agreement as set forth herein; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. The term of the Agreement shall be extended for twelve (12) months, commencing June 1, 

2022 through May 31, 2023 (the “Term”). The Term will automatically renew for another 

twelve (12) months beginning June 1, 2023 through May 31, 2024 unless either party 

terminates the Agreement in writing.  

 

2. Payment for the additional twelve (12) months shall be made to Cornerstone in twelve (12) 

payments of fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) through the Term of the Agreement (the 

“Fee”). 

 

3. Except as amended herein, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full 

force and effect. 

 

The Parties hereby accept and agree to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereby execute this Amendment and acknowledge that they are 

authorized to execute same. 

 

Dougherty County Commission    Cornerstone Government Affairs, Inc. 

 

 

By: __________________________    By: _______________________ 

 

Name: _______________________   Name: Geoff J. Gonella 

 

Title: ________________________    Title: President & Managing Director 

 

Date: _______________________   Date:  

23

Item 9a.



 
 

 

W W W . C G A G R O U P . C O M  |      @ C G A G R O U P  

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Dougherty County Commission 
FROM:  Cornerstone Government Affairs, Louie Perry and Jerry Usry 
SUBJECT: Select accomplishments from Federal and State lobbying work on behalf of Dougherty County 

DATE:  June 15, 2022  
 

 

Cornerstone has enjoyed our work on behalf of the County at the State and Federal level.  We were pleased that 

we were able to get considerable Federal support for the County to deal with the disastrous 2017 and 2018 

storms and work on other matters following the disasters.  Below is a list of our selected accomplishments.  We 

are happy to answer any questions.   

 

2022 

- Cornerstone assisted in FY 2023 appropriations requests on behalf of the Marine Corps Logistics Base in 
Albany. Cornerstone helped prepare and submit two requests to the offices of Senators Ossoff and 
Warnock totaling $80 million to construct and renovate facilities at the base. Both offices submitted the 
two requests to the Senate Appropriations Committee. 

- Cornerstone provided updates on the implementation of the infrastructure law and informed County 
officials when applications for relevant funding opportunities opened. 

- Cornerstone provided information on RAISE and INFRA grants and informed Dougherty County of the 
application opening. On the state level, Cornerstone has continued work to ensure Dougherty County 
will receive the largest possible share of infrastructure law funds as they become available.  

- Cornerstone has worked to represent Dougherty County’s interests at the state legislature. Examples 
include defeating SB 45 during the 2022 legislative session that would have dramatically raised the cost 
of water and wastewater maintenance of underground utilities and the passage of HB 1461 to favorably 
revise the Georgia annexation dispute resolution/arbitration process. 

- Cornerstone has been coordinating the Albany Chamber fly in set to occur this fall that typically includes 
the Dougherty County Commission Chairman as the lead spokesperson. 

 

2021 

- Cornerstone coordinated the Albany Chamber fly in. Cornerstone helped secure meetings with 
Congressman Bishop and Senators Ossoff and Warnock to discuss issues pertinent to Dougherty County. 

- Cornerstone tracked the implementation of and provided updates on the Coronavirus State and Local 
Fiscal Recovery Funds within the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). Dougherty County received over $17 
million in funding through this program. Cornerstone also worked with Congressman Bishop’s office to 
secure funding for Phoebe Putney Memorial Hospital and Albany Technical College through ARPA. These 
entities received over $13 million in funding. Cornerstone has worked with Dougherty County to submit 
a request to the state for broadband expansion funds through ARPA. 

24

Item 9a.

http://www.cgagroup.com/


 
 

 

W W W . C G A G R O U P . C O M  |      @ C G A G R O U P  

- Cornerstone provided intelligence, grant availability and counsel on the Airport Improvement Program 
funding in the Coronavirus Aid, Recovery and Economic Stability Act. Albany’s Southwest Georgia 
Regional Airport received $18,017,560 in funding through the Airport Improvement Act.  

- Provided updates on infrastructure law negotiations and potentially relevant provisions to Dougherty 
County. Cornerstone provided additional updates on implementation after the law was signed. The 
Southwest Georgia Regional Airport has received $1,117,640. 

- Cornerstone provided updates on federal funding opportunities. Albany Housing Authority received over 
$41 thousand in Housing and Urban Development funding. 

- As the focus turned from disaster funding to meeting community needs, Cornerstone has supported and 

helped secure state funding for Albany State University including a recent infusion of $50 million for 

water enhancement programs. In addition, legislatively directed bricks and mortar funding for local 

institutions like Albany Technical College, Phoebe Putney Memorial Hospital, Dougherty County public 

library and Southwest Georgia Regional Airport. DNR funding for Radium Springs and DOT local 

maintenance and improvement project funding have also been secured. 

2017-2020: Disaster Relief 

- Cornerstone worked onsite with Dougherty County leaders to gauge the amount of damage resulting 
from the January 2017 natural disasters. Cornerstone secured the intervention of Governor Deal’s office 
and state emergency management leaders to address the damage caused. Cornerstone briefed relevant 
state offices and connected state officials to relevant federal agency officials to raise awareness of 
Dougherty County’s needs. 

- On the federal level, Cornerstone initiated conversations with FEMA and the offices of Congressmen 
Graves and Bishop and Senators Isakson and Perdue in attempts to secure federal assistance funding for 
Dougherty County. Cornerstone briefed and prepared materials for the federal delegation to meet with 
agency officials, including the Secretary Carson of the Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

- Cornerstone created an opportunity for Governor Deal to participate in a joint letter with governors of 
other states impacted by natural disasters to raise awareness of Dougherty County’s needs. Cornerstone 
orchestrated the delivery of this letter to House and Senate Appropriations leadership. 

- Cornerstone secured meetings for Dougherty County officials to meet with Congressman Bishop and 
Senators Isakson and Perdue to describe the damage in Dougherty County. Cornerstone prepared 
meeting materials and briefed Dougherty County officials prior to these meetings. 

- Cornerstone helped draft letters to submit to the federal congressional delegation outlining the need.  
- Cornerstone provided regular updates on both state and federal work as well as briefings on the 

implementation processes. 
- Through Cornerstone’s efforts, over $26 million was awarded in Community Development Block Grant 

Mitigation funds in 2017. In 2018, Cornerstone’s work on behalf of Dougherty County would result in an 
award of over $41 million through the Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery 
program. 

- Cornerstone’s state lobbying efforts have ensured Dougherty County received the largest possible share 
of available state funds for disaster relief.  

- In 2019, Cornerstone provided intelligence on funding opportunities relevant to Dougherty County and 
provided updates on relevant program implementation. The Economic Development Administration 
awarded $8 million to invest in infrastructure to improve resiliency against natural disasters as part of 
the 2018 Disaster Supplemental Appropriation Cornerstone began advocating for two years prior. Prior 

25

Item 9a.

http://www.cgagroup.com/


 
 

 

W W W . C G A G R O U P . C O M  |      @ C G A G R O U P  

to the award, Cornerstone provided information on this funding opportunity and its application and 
review process.  

- In 2020, as a result of Cornerstone’s state and federal work in disaster relief efforts, an additional award 
of over $13 million was made by the Department of Housing and Urban Development to repair 
infrastructure. 

 

 

26

Item 9a.

http://www.cgagroup.com/


27

Item 9b.



28

Item 9b.



29

Item 9c.



30

Item 9c.



31

Item 9c.



32

Item 9c.



33

Item 9c.



34

Item 9c.



35

Item 9c.



36

Item 9c.



37

Item 9c.



38

Item 9c.



39

Item 9c.



40

Item 9c.



41

Item 9c.



42

Item 9c.



43

Item 9c.



44

Item 9c.



45

Item 9c.



46

Item 9c.



47

Item 9c.



48

Item 9c.



49

Item 9c.



50

Item 9c.



51

Item 9c.



52

Item 9c.



53

Item 9c.



54

Item 9c.



55

Item 9c.



56

Item 9c.



57

Item 9d.



58

Item 9d.



59

Item 9d.



60

Item 9d.



61

Item 9d.



62

Item 9d.



63

Item 9d.



64

Item 9d.



65

Item 9d.



66

Item 9d.



67

Item 9d.



68

Item 9d.



69

Item 9d.



70

Item 9d.



71

Item 9d.



72

Item 9d.



73

Item 9d.



74

Item 9d.



75

Item 9d.



76

Item 9d.



77

Item 9d.



78

Item 9d.



79

Item 9d.



80

Item 9d.



81

Item 9e.



Presentation to

Compensation and Classification Study

June 2022

82

Item 9f.



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2022

Study Goals and Objectives

 Perform a Compensation/Classification study for all included  County 
positions.

 Compare compensation to relevant labor markets/competitors. 

 Ensure that positions performing similar work with essentially the 
same level of complexity, responsibility, and knowledge, are 
classified together.

 Develop a competitive classification and compensation structure.

 Scope included approximately  779 positions in 178 job titles.

2
83

Item 9f.



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2022

This project was not designed to:

 Evaluate individual employee performance/capabilities.

 Reorganize departments.

 Identify staffing levels.

 Guarantee salary increases.

 Recommend salary decreases.

3
84

Item 9f.



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2022

Methodology Overview

 Captured key employee data.

 Provided information to explain project to employees.

 Identified jobs where recruitment and retention are concerns.

 Requested top management input.

 Gathered salary and compensation data from competitor organizations;

 Reviewed 425 completed Job Questionnaires to evaluate classifications.

 Developed an internally equitable and externally competitive system.

 Provided implementation/transition costs.

4
85

Item 9f.



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2019

Job Evaluation Factors

5

• Data Responsibility
• Judgment
• People Responsibility
• Complexity of Work
• Assets Responsibility
• Impact of Decisions
• Education

• Equipment Usage
• Physical Demands
• Communications
• Math
• Unavoidable Hazards
• Safety of Others
• Experience

86

Item 9f.



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2022

MAG’s Review of Markets

6

 Albany
 Americus
 Carroll County
 Colquitt County
 Dothan
 Dougherty City Schools
 Lee County
 Leon County
 Macon-Bibb County
 Thomasville
 Tift County
 Troup County
 Onet Online, a source for private sector data, published by the US

Department of Labor.

87

Item 9f.



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2022

MAG’s Review of Markets

7

Summary of Market Survey Results:

 “Lag” at the minimums: 14.82%

 “Lag” at the midpoints: 22.01%

 “Lag” at the maximums: 22.95%

88

Item 9f.



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2022

Recommendations

 Unified Plan created for all position titles.

 Open ranges are recommended due to increasingly “best practice”.

 MAG recommends setting the ranges at 50%, (minimum to maximum).

 There is 5% between proposed grades.

 Results:

 Establish a competitive position overall and for all jobs.
 Make the entry levels competitive.
 Bring the ranges in line with the markets.

8
89

Item 9f.



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2022

Implementation

 The recommended implementation target date is set at October 1, 2022.

 First action step is to provide an adjustment of 2.5% to all eligible employees.

 Second action step is to ensure employees are brought to range minimums.

 Third action step is to provide in-range equity adjustments to recognize time in 
position and relieve “compression”.

 Equity adjustments are based on promotion dates provided.

 Implementation approaches are on the following pages:

9
90

Item 9f.



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2022

Estimated Annualized Implementation Costs

Option A: $12.59 Starting Amount

10

Total of 779 Positions Annualized Impact

Flat 2.5% Adjustment $ 689,937

Adjustment to Minimums (563 people) $ 1,401,374

Employee equity adjustments based on 

promotion date (490 people)

$   406,978

Total Annualized Cost of Adjustments $2,498,289

Number of people with adjustments of any 

kind (not adjusted: 20)

Change in Total Payroll for included positions

759

8.92 %

91

Item 9f.



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2022

Estimated Annualized Implementation Costs

Option B: $13.00 Starting Amount

11

Total of 779 Positions Annualized Impact

Flat 2.5% Adjustment $ 690,180

Adjustment to Minimums (619 people) $ 2,125,915

Employee equity adjustments based on 

promotion date (505 people)

$    459,161

Total Annualized Cost of Adjustments $ 3,275,257

Number of people with adjustments of any 

kind (not adjusted: 20)

Change in Total Payroll for included positions

759

11.70 %

92

Item 9f.



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2022

Estimated Annualized Implementation Costs

Option C: $14.00 Starting Amount

12

Total of 779 Positions Annualized Impact

Flat 2.5% Adjustment $ 690,180

Adjustment to Minimums (677 people) $ 4,026,763

Employee equity adjustments based on 

promotion date (513 people)

$    539,887

Total Annualized Cost of Adjustments $ 5,256,831

Number of people with adjustments of any 

kind (not adjusted: 20)

Change in Total Payroll for included positions

759

18.77 %

93

Item 9f.



© Management Advisory Group, Inc. 2022

Transition Plan

Next steps include the following:

 Option A is recommended.

 Adopt the new compensation plan structure and ranges.

 Adopt the classification levels.

 Administrative assignment of incumbents to classifications.

 Implement new structure and equity adjustments effective October 1, 2022.

13
94

Item 9f.



Ann Min Mkt Ann Max

Dougherty County, GA
DRAFT

102

Code Proposed Class Title Hrly Min Mkt Hrly Max

Proposed Pay Plans

Unified
$26,177 $29,580 $36,67910 $12.59 $14.22 $17.63

ADMINISTRATIVE CLERKADCL

COMMUNITY SERVICE SUPERVISORCMSP

CUSTODIANCUSD

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE TECHNICIANGRMT

MAIL CLERKMLCL

MAIL CLERK-PART TIMEMLCR

WAREHOUSE WORKERWHWR

$26,546 $31,059 $38,51311 $12.76 $14.93 $18.52

COURT SECURITY OFFICERCSOR

COURT SECURITY OFFICER-PART TIMECSOP

HR CLERKHRCK

JUDICIAL SECURITY OFFICERJSOR

JUDICIAL SECURITY OFFICER-PART TIMEJSRP

LABORERLABR

LIBRARY ASSISTANTLBAS

LIBRARY ASSISTANT-PART TIMELBAP

PUBLIC INFORMATION REPRESENTATIVEPIRP

$26,952 $32,612 $40,43912 $12.96 $15.68 $19.44

ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARYADSC

COURT CLERKCTCP

CUSTODIAN IICUS2

EQUIPMENT OPERATOREQUO

WEIGHMASTERWGHM

$28,300 $34,243 $42,46113 $13.61 $16.46 $20.41

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT-PART TIMEADAP

REAL PROPERTY DATA CLERKRPDC

TRUCK DRIVERTRDR

VICTIM ADVOCATEVCAD

$29,715 $35,955 $44,58414 $14.29 $17.29 $21.43

ACCOUNTING CLERKACCL

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANTADAS

ANIMAL CONTROL AGENTACAG

ASSET/INVENTORY CONTROL CLERKAICC

FRAUD COURT COORDINATORFCCR

SENIOR COURT CLERKSCCL

SENIOR TAX CLERKTXSR

TAG & TITLE TECHNICIANTTTT

$31,200 $37,752 $46,81315 $15.00 $18.15 $22.51

AUDITORAUDT

CLERK DISPATCHERCLDP

FACILITIES TECHNICIAN IIFCT2

HEAVY EQUIPMENT OPERATOR IHEOP

LEGAL SECRETARYLGSC

SENIOR COURT CLERK-PART TIMESCCP

SENIOR LIBRARY ASSISTANTLBSA

Thursday, June 23, 2022 Page 2

DRAFT

7:10:09 PM
95

Item 9f.



Ann Min Mkt Ann Max

Dougherty County, GA
DRAFT

102

Code Proposed Class Title Hrly Min Mkt Hrly Max

Proposed Pay Plans

Unified
$32,760 $39,640 $49,15416 $15.75 $19.06 $23.63

ACCOUNTING TECHNICIANACCT

EMT BASICEMTB

EMT BASIC-PART TIMEEMPB

HR ADMINISTRATIVE COORDINATORHRAC

MECHANIC IMEC1

PRINCIPAL COURT CLERKPCCL

SENIOR TAG & TITLE TECHNICIANTTTS

$34,398 $41,622 $51,61117 $16.54 $20.01 $24.81

ADMINISTRATIVE SPECIALISTADSP

APPRAISERAPPR

EMT INTERMEDIATE-PART TIMEEMPI

MECHANIC IIMEC2

SENIOR CLERK DISPATCHERCLDS

VOTER REGISTRATION SPECIALISTVRSP

WAREHOUSE SUPERVISORWHSP

$36,118 $43,703 $54,19218 $17.36 $21.01 $26.05

BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPTBMSP

CIRCULATION MANAGERLBCM

CUSTODIAL SUPERVISORCUSS

EMT ADVANCEEMTA

EMT ADVANCE-PART TIMEEMPA

GRANT COORDINATOR/OFFICE ASSTGCOA

HEAVY EQUIPMENT OPERATOR IIHEO2

HR SPECIALIST (LIBRARY)HRSL

MECHANIC IIIMEC3

PAYROLL COORDINATORPAYC

PROBATION OFFICERJCPO

SENIOR AUDITORAUDS

WEB MASTERLBWM

WELDERWELD

$37,924 $45,888 $56,90119 $18.23 $22.06 $27.36

ACCOUNTANT IACC1

ASSET/INVENTORY CONTROL COORDAICD

BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPERVISORBMSR

CDBR-DR GRANTS ASSISTANTDRAS

CONSTRUCTION /MAINTENANCE SUPECONS

COURT CASE COORDINATORCCCD

DELINQUENT TAX COORDINATORTXDC

DEPUTYDEPP

DEPUTY-PART TIMEDEPT

DEPUTY-REG PART TIMEDEPR

DETENTION OFFICERDTOP

DETENTION OFFICER-PART TIMEDTPT

ENGINEERING AIDE IIEGA2

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL TECHENCT

LANDFILL SUPERVISORLFSP

Thursday, June 23, 2022 Page 3

DRAFT

7:10:09 PM
96

Item 9f.



Ann Min Mkt Ann Max

Dougherty County, GA
DRAFT

102

Code Proposed Class Title Hrly Min Mkt Hrly Max

Proposed Pay Plans

Unified
$37,924 $45,888 $56,90119 $18.23 $22.06 $27.36

LAW CLERKLLCP

PARKS & GARDEN COORDINATORPGCD

PATROL OFFICERPATP

PATROL OFFICER (LIB)PAPT

SENIOR APPRAISERAPPS

TECHNICAL SERVICES SPECIALISTLBTS

$39,820 $48,183 $59,74720 $19.14 $23.16 $28.72

HR SPECIALIST IHRSP

PROCUREMENT SPECIALISTPCSP

$41,811 $50,592 $62,73421 $20.10 $24.32 $30.16

ACCOUNTANT IIACC2

ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYSTADAN

ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISORADSR

CORPORALCORP

COURT CLERK SUPERVISORCTCS

HOUSING SPECIALIST (DR&G)DRHS

PARAMEDICEMSP

PARAMEDIC/FTOEMPF

PARAMEDIC-PART TIMEEMPP

PERSONAL PROPERTY MANAGERPPMG

PRINCIPAL APPRAISERAPPP

SENIOR ENGINEERING AIDEEGSR

SENIOR TECHNICAL SERVICES SPECLBST

VIDEO TECHNOLOGY COORDINATORVTCO

$43,902 $53,121 $65,87122 $21.11 $25.54 $31.67

CONSTRUCTION /MAINTENANCE MGRCONM

INTAKE OFFICERJCIO

LEGAL NAVIGATORLLNV

LEGAL NAVIGATOR-PART TIMELLNP

LF OPERATIONS MANAGERLFOM

SHOP MANAGERPWSM

SYSTEMS ANALYSTSYAN

$46,097 $55,778 $69,16423 $22.16 $26.82 $33.25

ACCOUNTING SUPERVISORACSP

ADMIN OPERATIONS MANAGERLFOA

APPRAISAL SYSTEM ANALYSTAPSA

ASSISTANT CHIEF INTAKE OFFICERJCIA

COURT CASE MANAGERCCMR

HR SPECIALIST IIHRS2

PARAMEDIC LEVEL IIEMS2

PARAMEDIC LEVEL II/FTOEMSF

SERGEANTSERG

$48,402 $58,566 $72,62224 $23.27 $28.16 $34.91

DA CHIEF MANAGERDAAC

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERKCCLD

Thursday, June 23, 2022 Page 4

DRAFT

7:10:09 PM
97

Item 9f.



Ann Min Mkt Ann Max

Dougherty County, GA
DRAFT

102

Code Proposed Class Title Hrly Min Mkt Hrly Max

Proposed Pay Plans

Unified
$48,402 $58,566 $72,62224 $23.27 $28.16 $34.91

JUVENILE COURT CLERKJCCC

LIBRARIANLBRN

NETWORK SPECIALISTNTSP

SENIOR INTAKE OFFICERJCSI

$50,822 $61,495 $76,25325 $24.43 $29.56 $36.66

ASSISTANT CHIEF APPRAISERCAPA

ASSISTANT SHIFT SUPERVISOREMAS

ASSISTANT SUPV OF ELECTIONSSOEA

ENGINEERING SPECIALISTEGSP

HOUSING CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (DRHM

INVESTIGATORINVS

LEGAL ASSISTANTLGAS

LIEUTENANTLIEU

LIEUTENANT EXEMPTLIEE

SENIOR ACCOUNTING SUPERVISORSACS

$53,363 $64,569 $80,06626 $25.66 $31.04 $38.49

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL MANAGERENCM

$58,833 $71,188 $88,27328 $28.29 $34.22 $42.44

CAPTAINCAPT

DEPUTY CHIEF INVESTIGATORINVD

EMS TRAINING OFFICEREMST

SENIOR BRANCH MANAGERLBSM

SENIOR LIBRARIANLBSR

SHIFT SUPERVISOREMSS

$61,775 $74,747 $92,68729 $29.70 $35.94 $44.56

ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEYDAAS

CASE MANAGER (DR&G)DRCM

GRANTS ANALYST (DR&G)DRGA

$64,863 $78,485 $97,32130 $31.18 $37.73 $46.79

PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICERPIOF

$68,106 $82,409 $102,18731 $32.74 $39.62 $49.13

ASSISTANT LIBRARY DIRECTORLBAD

ASST DIRECTOR OF FACILITIES MANAGEMENTFMDA

PROGRAM MANAGER (DR&G)DRPM

SUPPORT SERVICES DIRECTORSSDR

$71,512 $86,529 $107,29632 $34.38 $41.60 $51.58

ASSISTANT CHIEF DEPUTYCDPA

ASSISTANT CHIEF JAILERCJLA

ASSISTANT EMS DIRECTOREMSA

CHIEF APPRAISERCAPR

CHIEF DEPUTY CLERKCDCK

SENIOR ASST DISTRICT ATTORNEYDASR

$75,087 $90,856 $112,66133 $36.10 $43.68 $54.16

Thursday, June 23, 2022 Page 5

DRAFT

7:10:10 PM
98

Item 9f.



Ann Min Mkt Ann Max

Dougherty County, GA
DRAFT

102

Code Proposed Class Title Hrly Min Mkt Hrly Max

Proposed Pay Plans

Unified
$75,087 $90,856 $112,66133 $36.10 $43.68 $54.16

ASSISTANT FINANCE DIRECTORFNDA

ASST HR DIRECTORAHRD

COUNTY CLERKCCLK

ENGINEERING MANAGEREGPJ

$78,842 $95,398 $118,29434 $37.90 $45.86 $56.87

ASSISTANT PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTORPWDA

DRG DIRECTOR (DR&G)DRDR

$82,784 $100,168 $124,20935 $39.80 $48.16 $59.72

ASSISTANT CHIEF OF POLICECPOA

CHIEF JAILERCJLR

EMS DIRECTOREMSD

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT DIRECTORFMDR

SOLID WASTE DIRECTORSWDR

SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONSSOEL

$86,923 $105,177 $130,41936 $41.79 $50.57 $62.70

CHIEF DEPUTYCDPY

TAX DIRECTORTXDR

$91,269 $110,436 $136,94037 $43.88 $53.09 $65.84

FINANCE DIRECTORFNDR

HR DIRECTORHRDR

LIBRARY DIRECTORLBDR

$95,833 $115,957 $143,78738 $46.07 $55.75 $69.13

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTORPWDR

$100,624 $121,755 $150,97739 $48.38 $58.54 $72.58

ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATORCADA

$105,655 $127,843 $158,52540 $50.80 $61.46 $76.21

ASSOCIATE JUDGEASJD

178 Active Proposed Classes in the Unified Pay Plan

Thursday, June 23, 2022 Page 6

DRAFT

7:10:10 PM
99

Item 9f.



Increases
2,490,000$               

Benefits 439,485                    

2,929,485$               

Fund Salary Budgets
Proposed 
Increase

1 mil 
equals

Millage 
Equivalent

General 24,280,725                    2,632,821                 2,040,616   1.29           

Special Services District 2,116,645                      229,513                    587,756      0.39           

Solid Waste 619,286                          67,151                       N/A N/A

Total 27,016,656$                  2,929,485$               

Dougherty County, GA

Proposed Pay Study Implementation
Increase by Fund and Millage Equivalent

6/27/2022

Total Salary/Wages Increases plus Benefits

Dougherty County Board of Commissioners

Proposed Pay Study Implementation - Increases - All Funds

Option A

100

Item 9f.



Increases
3,275,257$          

Benefits 578,083                

3,853,340$          

Fund Salary Budgets
Proposed 
Increase

1 mil 
equals

Millage 
Equivalent

General 24,280,725                                3,468,006            2,040,616   1.70             

Special Services District 2,116,645                                  308,267                587,756       0.52             

Solid Waste 619,286                                      77,067                  N/A N/A

Total 27,016,656$                              3,853,340$          

Total Salary/Wages Increases plus Benefits

Option B

Dougherty County, GA
Dougherty County Board of Commissioners

Proposed Pay Study Implementation
Increase by Fund and Millage Equivalent

6/27/2022

Proposed Pay Study Implementation - Increases - All Funds

101

Item 9f.



Increases
5,256,831$            

Benefits 927,831                  

6,184,662$            

Fund Salary Budgets
Proposed 

Increase
1 mil 

equals
Millage 

Equivalent
General 24,280,725                               5,566,196               2,040,616     2.73           

Special Services District 2,116,645                                 494,773                  587,756        0.84           

Solid Waste 619,286                                    123,693                  N/A N/A

Total 27,016,656$                             6,184,662$            

Proposed Pay Study Implementation - Increases - All Funds

Total Salary/Wages Increases plus Benefits

Dougherty County, GA
Dougherty County Board of Commissioners

Proposed Pay Study Implementation
Increase by Fund and Millage Equivalent

Option C
6/27/2022

102

Item 9f.



103

Item 9h.



104

Item 9i.



JIM MCBRIDE 
 

Sherwood Baptist Church, Sherwood Pictures  

Executive Pastor, Executive Producer  

 

 

CHURCH STAFF:  Jim McBride joined Sherwood Baptist Church SherwoodBaptist.net in 2000. 

As Executive Pastor, he oversees operations, personnel, and finances for the church.   

 

A leader in the Albany community, Jim was general manager for Coca-Cola Bottling 

Company Consolidated, overseeing the distributions center in Albany and Tifton, Georgia.  

For two years, he chaired the Leadership Albany board and continues to help develop 

leaders in Albany’s business community. From 1979-1985, he served in the U.S. Marine 

Corps. 

 

 

SHERWOOD PICTURES:  Jim was an executive producer for Sherwood Pictures 

SherwoodPictures.com in the movie releases, FIREPROOF, FACING THE GIANTS, and 

FLYWHEEL.  On February 22, 2007, the Georgia State House of Representatives and Senate 

passed a resolution honoring Sherwood for their ministry success and positive impact.    

 

BOOKS:  Aug. 2011, Jim released his first book The Rite of Passage: A Father’s Blessing, 

through Moody Press.  The book is a parent’s resource on the why and how-to of a 

ceremony to help today’s teens be tomorrow’s adults. Along with Retired Pastor Michael 

Catt and the Kendrick brothers, he has appeared on top media across the US and 

beyond. His acting credits include roles as Bobby Lee Duke in FACING THE GIANTS and 

Butch Bowers in FLYWHEEL.  

105

Item 10a.

http://www.sherwoodbaptist.net/
http://www.sherwoodpictures.com/

	Top
	Item 5a.	Minutes
	2022.05.16 Minutes Regular
	2022.05.23 Minutes Work
	2022.05.23 Minutes SCM

	Item 8a.	Purchase a_Painting
	Purchases a_ Resolution for Interior Painting Empire
	Purchases a_ Interior Painting

	Item 8b.	Purchase b_Excavator and Trailer
	Purchases b_ Excavator-Trailer

	Item 9a.	Other a_Cornerstone Agreement
	Other a_ Resolution for Cornerstone
	Other a_ Cornerstone Government
	Other a_Cornerstone Accomplishments 2022

	Item 9b.	Other b_ Joint Ordinance
	Other c_ Joint Ordinance

	Item 9c.	Other e_Zoning Oxford
	Zoning a_ Oxford Construction Company

	Item 9d.	Other f_Zoning Fields
	Zoning b_ Jessica Fields

	Item 9e.	Other h_ SPLOST VIII
	SPLOST VIII

	Item 9f.	Other c_ Pay Study Recommendations
	Other c_Compensation Study Recommendations
	Other c_ Pay Study
	Other c_Pay Study Option A
	Other c_Pay Study Option B
	Other c_Pay Study Option C

	Item 9h.	Other j_Budget Item
	Other i_ Budget Items

	Item 9i.	Other d_Budget Disussion
	FY 23 Proposed Budgets

	Item 10a.	Board Appointment- Land Bank Authority
	Board Appointments_ Land Bank Authority

	Bottom

